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	REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
(RFP 101 – Empowerment and Capacity Building Grant)
CONTACT: Finance Division, hrcgrants@sfgov.org



To be considered for funding, each applicant must submit a separate, fully completed Proposal Template, provided on the page marked “PROPOSAL TEMPLATE – BEGIN HERE,” in accordance with the instructions in this Attachment. Incomplete or non-responsive proposals may be disqualified.
Applicants must use the Proposal Template for their submission. Do not submit a handwritten application. All submissions must be in .DOC or .DOCX format.
Each proposal must include a written proposal narrative aligned with the RFP’s goals and metrics, structured according to the selection criteria outlined in the RFP.
Proposal Completeness & Minimum Qualifications
1. Proposals must fully address all requested items outlined in this document and provide sufficient detail to demonstrate alignment with scoring criteria.
1. Incomplete or vague responses, such as “To be provided upon request,” “To be determined,” or leaving sections blank, will not be accepted and will result in disqualification.
Instructions for Submission
1. Use this provided Proposal Template and follow the structure as provided.
1. Ensure each section is completed thoroughly and concisely to maximize scoring potential.
1. Use as much space as necessary to provide a comprehensive and well-supported response.
1. Verify that your submission meets all Minimum Qualifications before submission to avoid disqualification.
1. Follow the Form 990 Guidance to ensure your financial health can be properly assessed. 
1. Collaborative proposals: If proposing as a collaborative (joint venture or team of agencies), clearly designate a lead agency to serve as fiscal sponsor and contract signatory. The lead agency must demonstrate the management and financial capability to oversee delivery and account for grant funds across all partners. Include a description of each partner’s role, relevant qualifications, and the governance structure for the collaborative.

Public Disclosure Notice
All documents submitted under this RFP process are subject to public disclosure in accordance with applicable laws. If your proposal contains confidential or proprietary information, you are responsible for redacting such content prior to submission.
Written Proposal Overview
Each proposal should align with the goals of the San Francisco Human Rights Commission (HRC) and the Empowerment and Capacity Building (ECB) program deliverables described in the RFP. Applicants must review the full RFP and respond to all required questions and criteria.
Each application must include the following components:
1. Written Proposal (structured as provided in this Proposal Template)
1. Form 990 Filings (last three full fiscal years; or equivalent financial statements if not required to file Form 990)
Each proposal must use the same section and header organization as provided in this Proposal Template. Submit the required attachments as instructed in the RFP. Do not submit optional materials unless the RFP explicitly requests them.
Scoring Criteria and Proposal Structure
Each proposal will be assessed on its alignment with the stated goals and deliverables. The maximum score is 100 points. The table below shows how each section of the Proposal Template maps to the scoring criteria. Sections 1–5 are individually scored. Sections 6–7 are not separately scored but inform the panel’s assessment across criteria.

	Section
	Proposal Narrative Section
	Scoring Criterion
	Points

	1
	Community and Cultural Alignment
	Community and Cultural Alignment
	25

	2
	Grant Management Expertise
	Grant Management Expertise
	20

	3
	Fiscal Health and Operational Capacity
	Fiscal Health and Operational Capacity
	25

	4
	Capacity Building Approach
	Capacity Building Approach
	25

	5
	Transition Planning
	Transition Planning
	5

	6
	Staffing Plan
	Evaluated across criteria
	—

	7
	Philanthropic Match
	Supports program feasibility
	—

	Total Scored Points
	100



As you prepare your proposal, keep the following principles in mind to strengthen your application:
· Depth & Clarity: Present a well-reasoned, detailed, and actionable plan. Avoid vague or general statements; use specific examples, data, and evidence to support your approach.
· Alignment with RFP Goals: Demonstrate clear alignment with the Guiding Principles, program goals, and deliverables described in this RFP. Your proposal should show that you understand the intent of the ECB program and the communities it is designed to serve.
· Feasibility & Readiness: Show that your approach is realistic, appropriately resourced, and grounded in relevant experience. Identify potential risks and how you would address them.
· Impact & Sustainability: Articulate the meaningful, long-term community benefits your program will produce. Demonstrate how the work will outlast the grant period and contribute to lasting change for the organizations and communities served.
Word Limits
Sections 1–5 of the Written Proposal Narrative are each limited to 1,000 words or fewer. Sections 6 and 7 have no formal word limit but should be clear and concise. The Philanthropic Match section should not exceed 500 words.
Fiscal Background and 990s
Applicants must submit their actual Form 990 filings for the past three full fiscal years. Data should be based on the last three fiscal years from IRS Form 990 filings or equivalent financial statements. 
Instructions for Applicants
Submit the following documentation so HRC can review your organization’s fiscal information:
1. Form 990: Attach your last three full fiscal years of IRS Form 990 filings (including schedules and attachments filed).
1. If you are not required to file Form 990: Submit equivalent financial statements for the same periods and briefly explain why Form 990 is not available.
1. If you have fewer than three full fiscal years of filings: Submit what is available and explain the gap.
Reminders for Submission
1. Submit one complete proposal package per Applicant or Collaborative.
1. Your proposal must follow the same section and header organization as provided in the Proposal Template.
1. Failure to address all required sections or provide required attachments will result in disqualification.
1. For complete selection criteria, refer to the RFP document.
1. Write clearly and succinctly, responding directly to the questions asked. Do not include extra materials that are not requested.
Attachments Checklist
The following items must be completed and included in the proposal package:
1. Attachment I: Applicant Coversheet and References via Fillout Form
1. Attachment II: Proposal Template (this document)
1. Form 990 Filings: Last three fiscal years’ Form 990 or equivalent
Failure to submit required Attachments will result in disqualification. Only submissions with all required attachments will be considered for funding. Alternative formats may be provided to individuals with disabilities by contacting hrcgrants@sfgov.org before the submission deadline.


	PROPOSAL TEMPLATE – BEGIN HERE
Complete all sections below. This is the fillable portion of your proposal submission.


Cover Page / Applicant Information
	Organization Name:
	

	Fiscal Sponsor (if applicable):
	


Written Proposal Narrative
This narrative must respond to the questions below. Sections 1–5 are limited to 1,000 words or fewer per section. Use clear headings and provide specific examples and evidence. Each numbered section corresponds directly to a scoring criterion as shown in the Scoring Criteria and Proposal Structure table above.

Section 1: Community and Cultural Alignment (25 Points)
Describe your organization’s mission, history, and demonstrated experience advancing racial and gender equity and capacity building including, but not limited to, San Francisco’s Black, LGBTQI+, immigrant, and other marginalized communities.
1. Provide specific examples of programs or initiatives that demonstrate your ability to strengthen small or emerging community-based organizations.
1. Discuss how your organization’s approach aligns with the Dream Keeper Initiative’s values of equity, sustainability, and systemic change.
Describe your organization’s philosophy and methodology for equitable grantmaking and explain how your program is aligned with the goals of the San Francisco Human Rights Commission for this RFP.
1. How will you ensure that the ECB program centers emerging organizations and removes barriers to participation for smaller, community-rooted organizations?
1. What criteria and processes will you use to assess organizational readiness, distribute funding, and monitor progress while maintaining flexibility and responsiveness to community needs?
1. How will you ensure geographic representation in your funding decisions?
[Applicant response here]


Section 2: Grant Management Expertise (20 Points)
Provide evidence of proven experience and documented success managing comparable intermediary grant programs, including mini-RFP processes, subaward agreements, and ongoing grantee monitoring and support.
1. How many competitive grantmaking rounds has your organization administered in the past five years, and what was the total dollar value managed?
1. Describe your approach to compliance, reporting, performance management, and risk mitigation for subgrantees.
1. How do you ensure that grant selection processes are transparent, equitable, and free from conflicts of interest?
[Applicant response here]

Section 3: Fiscal Health and Operational Capacity (25 Points)
Demonstrate the financial management systems, internal controls, staffing, and operational infrastructure needed to manage substantial public funds transparently, efficiently, and compliantly.
1. Describe your organization’s financial stability and readiness, including relevant audit practices, fiscal policies, and experience administering government funding.
1. What internal controls and financial management systems are in place to ensure accurate tracking, disbursement, and reporting of grant funds?
1. How does your organization ensure compliance with local, state, and federal fiscal requirements, including audit readiness?
Note: This section is evaluated in conjunction with your Form 990 filings. Include a short narrative if there are significant financial trends or changes that should be considered.
[Applicant response here]

Section 4: Capacity Building Approach (25 Points)
Outline your proposed model for capacity building, technical assistance, and mentorship.
1. What tools, curricula, or framework(s) will you use to support organizational growth, fiscal health, and operational efficiency?
1. How will you tailor capacity-building support to reflect the cultural, historical, and lived experiences of the organizations served?
1. Provide examples of successful technical assistance interventions or outcomes your organization has previously implemented.
Explain your approach to helping ECB grantees strengthen their organizational sustainability and prepare for post-grant funding.
1. How will you support organizations in developing diverse funding streams, financial planning tools, and evaluation capacity?
1. How will you address the particular challenges faced by emerging organizations with limited infrastructure or fiscal capacity?
[Applicant response here]

Section 5: Transition Planning (5 Points)
Provide a clear strategy for transitioning grantees toward sustainability after ECB funding concludes.
1. What specific steps will you take to prepare grantees for independence from ECB funding, including plans for institutionalization and diversified funding?
1. How will you assess grantee readiness for transition and identify organizations that may need extended support?
1. What long-term community benefits do you anticipate from your transition approach?
[Applicant response here]

Section 6: Staffing Plan
This section is not separately scored but informs the panel’s assessment across all criteria.
Describe the staffing plan for your proposed program, including the total number of staff, and all leadership, direct services, and supportive roles needed to implement the program as proposed.
1. Explain how your staffing approach reflects cultural competency, community proximity, and responsiveness to small and emerging organizations.
1. If proposing as a collaborative, describe each partner’s staffing contribution and how staffing responsibilities are allocated across partners.
[Please note: Proposers should not submit, and the City will not consider, any demographic data about the racial, ethnic, gender, sexual orientation, or national origin make up of Proposer’s staff, leadership, and/or board of directors.]
[Applicant response here]


Section 7: Philanthropic Match
This section is not separately scored but supports the panel’s assessment of program feasibility and resource maximization. Limit response to 500 words or fewer.
Applicants are strongly encouraged to leverage philanthropic or other non-City funds to support the administration, design, and delivery of the ECB program. Describe your plan to secure non-City resources to cover some or all administrative and programmatic infrastructure costs, with the goal of maximizing the proportion of City funds distributed directly to community-based organizations.
1. Identify any committed or anticipated matching funds, their sources, and how such funds will be used to support program administration, technical assistance, evaluation, or other non-grantmaking costs.
1. If a dollar-for-dollar match is not planned, explain how your organization will ensure that City funds are maximized for direct community impact.
[Applicant response here]
Additional Reminders
1. Ensure each section is thorough and directly addresses the corresponding scoring criteria.
1. Avoid vague or placeholder responses.
1. Verify that all required attachments are submitted separately and referenced appropriately within your proposal.
1. If proposing as a collaborative, include all partner agencies and clearly designate the lead agency and fiscal sponsor responsible for contract compliance and fiscal oversight.
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